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March 13, 2020 
 

ADDENDUM No. 5 
 

Request for Proposal CS-20-02 
RADIO DISPATCH CONSOLE SYSTEM,  

CALL HANDLING/PHONE SYSTEM AND DATA AND MEDIA LOGGING SYSTEM 
 

The addendum is being issued prior to the closing of the request for proposal (RFP) to provide further 
information, make changes to, or to clarify the RFP documents and is to be read, interpreted and coordinated 
with all other parts of the RFP documents.  In the case of a conflict with the balance of the documents, this 
Addendum shall govern. Proponents shall attach a signed copy of this addendum to their proposal 
submission, failure to do so may result in a non-compliant proposal.  This addendum shall form part of 
the Contract Documents. 
 
 
This addendum is being provided in clarification to RFP CS-20-02 released February 12, 2020.   

 
QUESTION 1: In Section 1.4 System requires 2 redundant session border controllers (SBC): 
  

• these are typically part of the ESInet and provided by the network service provider.  Are you 
requesting 2 onsite SBC’s or just interoperability with the Telus network SBCs? 

 
ANSWER 1: Yes, we are requesting session border controllers onsite.  The session border controllers 
in the PSAPS have been mandated by the CRTC as part of the NG9-1-1 Onboarding process with TELUS 
and the new NG9-1-1 Agreements that will be coming out soon. 
 
For further reference see: 
 

• TIF85 – What you need to be a Canadian NENA i3 PSAP – 2018Jul04 version – attached to this 
addendum 

• CRTC Telecom Decision 2019-353 at paragraph 13 mandates the BCF (firewall and session 
border controller - SBC) 

• ESRE0088 in Section 4.2.8 PSAP Border Control Function, Section 4.2.5 Additional Network 
Attributes – support for BGP & High Availability, and Section 4.2.10 re Quality of Service 
Standard 

• ESWG Letter re NENA i3v3 Impacts in Attachment at Item 1 re Web Services and Item 6 re 
Attended Transfers 

 
QUESTION 2: Would it be possible to incorporate the responses/clarifications being provided via the 
addendums into the RFP requirements text?  In some cases, the initial requirement may have changed, and I 
want to make sure we capture what is really being asked and respond accordingly. 
 
ANSWER 2: No.  As provided in Section 1.4 of the RFP, all amendments and addenda issued for this 
RFP must be signed by the proponent and included with the proposal submission and will form part of 
the Contract documents.   
 
QUESTION 3: Can you please provide the address of the 2 dispatch centres?  We need to do facility checks. 

1. Primary dispatch centre? 
2. Secondary dispatch centre? 
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ANSWER 3:  Both of the of the dispatch centres are in the progress of being built, and are both located 
in Prince George, BC.  For the purposes of the equipment purchase included in this RFP facility checks 
would not be required by the vendor.  The RDFFG has provided the site addresses to Telus, B.C. and 
Telus will be providing the NG911 and telephone facilities.   
 
QUESTION 4:  In light of the recent COVID-19 precautions and concerns would it be possible to submit an 
electronic response to the RFP as well as corresponding signatures? 
 
ANSWER 4:  The RDFFG will allow for electronic submissions in PDF format to this RFP as well as 
corresponding signatures.   
 
The email topic is to be labelled in the subject line “CS-20-02 RDFFG Radio Dispatch, Call Handling, 
Media Logging Proposal – “Insert Contractor Name”. 
 
The proposal must be sent to the General Manager of Financial Services before the closing date 
and time at the following email address:  
 
General Manager of Financial Services  
Email: purchasing@rdffg.bc.ca  

 
For closing purposes, the official time of receipt of the proposal submission is determined by the 
time of receipt of the email. 
 
The Owner will not accept or consider proposals transmitted by facsimile or delivered to an email 
address other than the address identified.  
 
The Owner will not accept any proposals not received at the email addresses identified above or 
not received by the closing date and time.  Such proposals will be unopened.  Records will be kept 
of all returned proposals. 
 
The responsibility for submitting a response to this Request for Proposal to the correct email 
address on or before the closing date and time, will be solely and strictly the responsibility of the 
Proponent.  
 
 
I/We hereby verify that we have considered this addendum in our proposal submission. 
 
 
 
     
Proponent’s Signature  Date 
 
 
All inquiries relating to RFP CS-20-02 must be emailed to: 

Melanie Perrin, Manager Public Safety Operations 
mperrin@rdffg.bc.ca 

mailto:purchasing@rdffg.bc.ca


What you need to be a Canadian NENA i3 PSAP 
 
CISC Emergency Services Working Group 
Based on the NENA i3v2 Architecture 

 
Admin Lines 

POTS, Centrex 
Local Phone System 

 
ESINet / NGCS *Info Only 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Address 

 
Originiating Service Provider 
*Info Only 

 

 
ADR 

Location Server 

 

 
PSAP 

ESINet SIP Trunk 
 
 
Border Control Function (5.1) 

Query Via ESINet 

 

 
Call/Media Logging Functions (5.7.12) 

1- Firewall (Intrusion Detection) Appliance 

QoS parameters (ESCO0571A) 

2- Session Border Controller Appliance 
 

I3 Proxy/Splitter (if applicable) 
 

Call/Media Handling Functions 
(NENA i3 Interfaces and Specifications) 

-HELD Query (5.7.4) 
-LoST Query (5.7.3) 
-ADR Query (5.7.15) 

1- Logging Interface 
2- Admin Line Loggers 
3- Multimedia Storage Long Term Archive 

4- Call Search / Retrieval / Legal Distribution UI 
 

PSAP Hardware/Software 
(CPE or Hosted, CTI, CAD, etc.) 

1- Additional Data Display (as applicable) 

i3 SIP Call Interface (5.7.1) 

Test Call Interface (5.7.17) 

Element State (5.7.6) 

Service State (5.7.7) 
AbandonedCall Event (5.7.8) 

QueueState(5.7.10) 

Policy (5.7.14) 

Call Diversion (5.7.18) 

Interactive Media Response (5.12) 

LoST Interface (5.7.3) 

LIS Interface (5.7.4) 

Spatial Interface (5.7.11) 

Incidents Interface (5.7.19) 
Additional Data Interface (5.7.15) 

DequeueRegistration(5.7.9) 

Security Posture (5.7.13) 

Discrepancy  Reporting (4.7) 

NG9-1-1 Data Exchange 
PIDF-LO, ADR, EIDD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Am I 
Ready for 
NG911 in 

2020? 

2- Call Taking/Dispatch GIS 

3- Call Taking/Dispatch Incident Database 
4- Call Taking/Dispatch Services 
5- Agency/Service Locator Client (5.16) 
6- PSAP Proprietary GIS Database (Optional) 
7- Broadband / Wi-Fi Interfaces to Responder Devices 

 
System Management 

1- Domain Name Resolution (5.15) 
2- Network Time (Stratum 0) (5.7.16) 
3- Security Administration 
4- IP Network Administration 

NG911 Media Interface (5.7.2) (Sound Integration Required) 
Agent Routing & Automatic Call Distribution System 

 
ESRP 

Border Control 
Function 

911 

Location Information 

Location Verification 

ECRF 

 
ESRP 

BC
F 

Legend: 
NENA Specifications 

Optional Elements And 
Recommendations 

Version 1.0 

 

http://c.ymcdn.com/sites/www.nena.org/resource/resmgr/standards/NENA-STA-010.2_i3_Architectu.pdf
http://c.ymcdn.com/sites/www.nena.org/resource/resmgr/standards/NENA-STA-010.2_i3_Architectu.pdf
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